
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL 

Chief Executive 
 
 
COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 
 
Date: 
 

Monday, 20 November 2017 

Time: 
 

2.00 pm 

Venue: 
 

The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Leek 

10 November 2017 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies.  

2. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 6) 

3. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

4. Declaration of Interests:  

 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 

 

5. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 
 

6. Your Housing Group - 6 Monthly Update & Review. (Pages 7 - 14) 

7. Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update. (Pages 15 - 40) 

8. Work Programme (Pages 41 - 42) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme: 

 Chair’s Items 

 Members’ Items 
 

 
SIMON BAKER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Membership of Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor A Banks (Chair) Councillor T McNicol (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor C J S Atkins Councillor J Bull 
Councillor S Ellis Councillor E Fallows 
Councillor D Grocott Councillor B A Hughes 
Councillor K J Jackson Councillor P Jackson 
Councillor L D Lea Councillor M M Lovatt 
Councillor L A Malyon Councillor C Pearce 
Councillor J Redfern Councillor T Riley 
Councillor D Shaw Councillor P Wilkinson 
Councillor P Wood  

 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

MONDAY, 11 SEPTEMBER 2017 
 
PRESENT: Councillor T McNicol (Vice-Chairman)  
 
 Councillors C J S Atkins, E Fallows, B A Hughes, K J Jackson, 

M M Lovatt, C Pearce, J Redfern, T Riley, P Wilkinson and P Wood. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor M Bowen – Portfolio Holder for Communities, Leisure, 

Sport, Parks, Countryside and Housing 
Councillor A Forrester – Portfolio Holder for Environment 
Councillor B Johnson  
Councillor G Lockett 

 
IN ATTENDANCE: S Hampton Member and Community Services Officer 
 M Trillo Executive Director and Monitoring Officer 

(People) 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillors A Banks, D Grocott, P Jackson, L D Lea and 

L A Malyon. 
 

62 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS. 
 
There were none. 
  

63 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 
 
DECIDED: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Panel held on the 3rd July be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

64 REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL. 
 
DECIDED: That the report of the Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel dated 

24th July be noted. 
 

65 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: 
 
There were none. 
 

66 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY. 
 
There were none. 
 

67 SAFEGUARDING ANNUAL REPORT. 
 
David Smith, Principal Officer, Communities and Partnerships, introduced a report 
which updated members on the Council’s action to meet its safeguarding duties. Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 11 September 2017 
 

2 
 

 
The Council was committed to ensuring the safety and protection of people using its 
services. 
 
Legislation and statutory guidance made it necessary for the Council to ensure that it 
had policies and procedures in place to ensure that children and adults at risk of 
abuse and neglect were safeguarded when using services provided by or on behalf 
of the Council. 
 
The Council approved a Child Protection Policy in 2006 and subsequently updated 
the policy to incorporate adults at risk of abuse and neglect in 2014. The introduction 
of the Care Act in May 2014 necessitated some changes and a revised policy was 
agreed by the Council in 2016. 
 
The Council had established an officer group, chaired by the Executive Director 
(People) to co-ordinate the Council’s response to safeguarding.  
 
Recent actions included: providing safeguarding training for staff members; 
reviewing procurement and contract management procedures; introducing a new 
staff safety system; and on-going provision of training for licensed taxi drivers. The 
Council had also supported the work of the Moorlands Together Safer and Stronger 
Communities Partnership to safeguard the local community. 
 
The Council was required by Staffordshire Safeguarding Children Board to complete 
a safeguarding audit (under s11of the Children Act 2004) and judged itself to have 
met each of the standards. 
 
DECIDED: That the Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel NOTED the actions 

taken by the Council in response to its safeguarding duties. 
 

68 POLICY ON ENFORCEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CRIMES. 
 
The Panel considered a report which presented a revised policy that aimed to further 
improve the Council’s approach to tackling environmental crimes such as littering, 
fly-tipping and dog fouling. 
 
The Council revised its approach to responding to environmental crimes in 
December 2014 with the aim of adopting “a more flexible approach through the multi 
skilling of a large number of employees with existing enforcement capability within 
their job roles”. 
 
This approach had been reviewed and has resulted in the development of a revised 
Policy on the Enforcement of Environmental Crimes.  
 
The policy suggested adopting a triple-track approach to responding to 
environmental crimes involving education, enforcement, and cleansing. 
 
Under the new policy, enforcement activity would primarily be carried out by the 
Council’s Environment Enforcement Officers and the Geographic and Specialist 
Service Supervisors for Street Cleaning, Parks and Waste. Responsibility for the 
enforcement of environmental crime would move from Regulatory Services to 
Democratic and Community Services to strengthen the link between the response to 
environmental crime and other forms of anti-social behaviour, and also to further 
develop the links to other locality-based activity delivered by the latter service. Page 4



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 11 September 2017 
 

3 
 

 
Officers would normally issue a fixed penalty notice where an offence of abandoning 
a vehicle, littering, fly-tipping, fly-posting or dog fouling had occurred and may also 
consider recovering the cost of removal. There were a number of situations when the 
Council would consider that the issuing of a fixed penalty notice may not be 
appropriate and instead would seek to prosecute under the relevant legislation.  
 
Hot spot maps of reported environmental crimes would be produced on a quarterly 
basis to help guide activity and, in addition, the Geographic and Specialist Service 
Supervisors would provide a monthly briefing highlighting areas for the enforcement 
officers to prioritise. 
 
The policy set out a formal approach to payment by instalments, in the interests of 
fairness and consistency, with the aim of both assisting those whose circumstances 
would make it difficult for them to pay the full amount within 14 days and also as a 
means of improving payment rates. 
 
The policy also reiterated the Council’s approach to environmental crimes committed 
by young people aged 17 or under. 
 
Discussion took place around the hours of work of the Enforcement Officers and the 
need for officers to be available at weekends, particularly after football matches. 
Members also commented on the requirement to focus resources and use data more 
effectively.  
 
The increased number of abandoned vehicles was highlighted and members 
enquired into the length of time it took for vehicles to be removed. Specific cases 
would be looked into after the meeting. It was felt by some members that the level of 
fine wasn’t a sufficient deterrent. 
 
Panel members expressed the view that litter, dog fouling and fly-tipping was a 
problem in the both the town centres and rural areas. Suggestions were made such 
as to change the regulations to make it a requirement for dog owners to carry two 
bags at all times and for a high profile campaign to take place in relation to littering. 
 
 
DECIDED: 1) That the Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel NOTE the content of 

the report.  
 

2) That the Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel RECOMMEND 
CABINET approval of the proposed Policy on Enforcement of 
Environmental Crimes. 

 
69 WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The Panel reviewed the Work Programme and agreed the items listed. 
 
At this point in the meeting, members raised their concerns in relation to the County 
Council’s review of the bus service and agreed to set up a working group.  
 
DECIDED:  That the Panel’s Work Programme be agreed and a Bus Service 

Working Group be arranged. 
 
 Page 5



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 11 September 2017 
 

4 
 

The meeting closed at 3.15 am 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 6



Your Moorlands Legacy Report 

20th November 2017 

Agenda Item 6  

     

   

1. Report title:  Your Moorlands -  Legacy Agreement Update 

 

2. Action:  

For information and noting. 

 

3. Recommendation(s) 

Information and noting. 

 

4. Report of: Sharon Wheeler – Operations Manager Moorlands 

 

5. Contact details of author: sharon.wheeler@yourhousinggroup.co.uk 

 

6. Confidential report: No  

 

7. Supporting  documents: Appendix 1 & 2 

 

8. Introduction  

 In 2017, Moorlands Housing Association transferred its engagements to Arena 

Housing Group. This means that governance is undertaken by those members of the 

YHG Common Board who govern Arena and will now also have a specific oversight 

and responsibility for Moorlands. 

A legacy agreement was developed by and for: 

 Moorlands Housing Association 

 Your Housing Group (YHG) 

 Staffordshire Moorlands District Council (SMDC) 

 

The Legacy Agreement is a goodwill agreement between Moorlands Housing 

Association, YHG and SMDC and sets out the conditions for change to the legal 

structure.   

 

This paper provides a performance and development update on the YHG business 

areas identified in the legacy agreement. 

 

9. Housing Management  

9.1 The Property team based at Eaton House are currently responsible for housing  

Management. There are plans to close Eaton House by Spring 2018 and we are in 

discussion with SMDC to use office and reception space at Moorlands House in Leek. 

This will ensure that we retain a presence in the area and remain available for 

customers who need face to face support. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Your Moorlands Legacy Report 

20th November 2017 

Agenda Item 6  

     

   

 

9.2  YHG are members of the Staffordshire Moorlands Home Options Partnership 

and allocate properties via the Choice Based Lettings system. Home Options was 

rolled out in April 2017 and this has resulted in a positive impact on our lettings time. 

 

9.3 YHG are going through a tenancy harmonisation project to standardise tenancy 

conditions across the group. YHG tenants in the Moorlands and High Peak area are 

among those being invited to sign up to the new tenancy agreements.  

 

9.4 Compliance  

We continue to be 100% compliant in term of domestic gas servicing, asbestos 

checks, electrical safety and legionella testing in our flatted blocks.  Our Compliance 

and Facilities agent also does regular safety checks on all our communal areas.  

 

9.5 Anti-Social Behaviour 

Tenancy breaches and anti-social behaviour are dealt with by our Legal Co-ordinator. 

They are working with local policing partnerships and will be setting up a confidential 

information sharing panel with local councillors to assist with individual Councillors’ 

own case management.        

 

       10. Asset and Investment 

There is a planned programme for renewal of kitchens and bathrooms in the 

Moorlands and High Peak area.  Moorlands had a delayed start this year due to a 

couple of operation issues but have been delivering regular monthly completions 

since their commencement.  The Moorlands kitchen delivery programme will have 

assistance from an external contractor starting in November ensuring the volume 

delivery plan is achieved for March 18.  High Peak kitchen delivery forms part of a 

wider group delivery programme and is being completed by an external contractor. 

The contractor has high resource levels and can complete higher volumes within 

shorter programmes.  This enables the contractor to move to the next phase of 

delivery within the group.    

 

        11. Repairs  

Moorlands Direct Labour Organisation (DLO) continues to deliver responsive repairs 

and void work in the Moorlands area. 

 

Fix 360, YHG in-house contractor, was successfully launched on the 2nd October 

2017 operating in the regions of Merseyside and Greater Manchester, and the 

Moorlands DLO 2018/19 Investment Programme is currently in development. 

 

 

Page 8



Your Moorlands Legacy Report 

20th November 2017 

Agenda Item 6  

     

   

 

       12. Community First  

12.1 Increase in customers who are economically active due to engagement with 

YHG activities 

Customer First Team continued to resource Work Clubs across Leek, Biddulph and 

Cheadle. The Work Club engages with businesses and training providers across the 

Moorlands to identify opportunities for customers. We have worked alongside the 

Building Resilient Families and Communities program, which helps families facing 

challenging circumstances, and have set up Work Routes, a Euro funded programme 

to assist people to get into employment in our three key locations.  

 

12.2 Increase in appeal of local neighbourhoods (Street Scene) 

The YHG Customer First Team have been developing projects and products to 

enhance the assets of YHG and the Community we operate in across Leek & 

Biddulph.  

 

12.3 Leek & Biddulph 

 Working with customers and stakeholders to address issues such as fly tipping, 

parking issues and anti-social behaviour in 6 other blocks. This includes using a 

Parking Eye system to deter non-residents from parking or fly tipping, deploying 

temporary surveillance on nuisance or hotspot areas, and redesigning waste and 

recycling areas to improve customer use and support the Local Authority’s waste 

strategy. 

 

12.4 Biddulph 

St Johns Road Biddulph-An intensive approach on the empty commercial units and 

low performing single occupancy flats above the complex on St Johns Road, 3 of the 

5 commercial units are now operational, opportunities to use other units are being 

explored.  

Investing £30k to improve the commercial units, car park upgrades and in particular 

The Learning Curve premises which hosts Work Club and Community Room Hire.  

Supporting a Community Angels concept which operates out of the Toast-Roast Café 

weekly and improves the local area through litter picking. 

 

We are seeing a financial return on the above by renting the commercial units alone.  

 

Helping customers into employment has a positive effect on their financial and 

mental well-being.  Eleven YHG Customers who have moved into employment have 

reduced their rent arrears by a total of £6K this year. 

 

 

Page 9



Your Moorlands Legacy Report 

20th November 2017 

Agenda Item 6  

     

   

12.5 Leek  

Allocating £21k to improve Belle Vue blocks external areas  

Working with Grow Moorlands, a local social enterprise on a resident involvement 

gardening and cleaning project at Belle Vue.  

 

12.6 Increase in local services within priority neighbourhood 

Developing   new youth groups that link into the local schools and estates within 

Leek & Biddulph. Due end of 2017.  

Investing in a Business Start Up project to support community growth in our key 

neighbourhoods. Starting November 2017.  

 

          13.Digital Engagement  

13.1 The digital housing application is being piloted with the general needs housing 

teams in both Cheshire and Greater Manchester South teams since May 2017.  All 

new applicants applying for properties apply online and we have over 85% of 

applicants completing the process digitally without any support from staff.  To date 

140 applications have been completed and 95 have become customers.  In October, 

we launched the digital tenancy agreement in the pilot areas of Cheshire and 

Greater Manchester, where customers complete the sign-up process online and are 

sent a digital tenancy agreement which they sign electronically.  We have received 

positive feedback from customers who have completed the process, who have said 

the process was simple, accessible and easy to complete. 

 

13.2 The digital customer portal with the functionality for customers to manage their 

tenancies online; make a payment and view payment history, report a repair and 

view repair history and to utilise our help and advice section have all been 

developed.   

Prior to the roll out of the customer portal to all existing customers, which will be in 

2018, we have given access to a small group of customers to provide some 

additional internal customer testing and feedback.  This pilot group has been 

extended to provide access to the portal for the digital customers who complete the 

online housing application and have since become a customer and also to a sample 

of customers who have reported repairs through our website. Currently the pilot 

group is around 200 customers.  

 

We will grow this pilot group of customers over the coming months and a full 

communication plan will be undertaken prior to the full roll out of the customer 

portal to all customers in 2018.  

 

 

 

Page 10



November 20th 2017  
 

Appendix 1 Moorlands Legacy Agreement  KPIs    

Area  Legacy Agreement  KPI (YTD)        Target Actual 

Housing Management  Overview of local service 
delivery  
 

 
 
 
 

 Number of lettings 

 
         N/A  138 

general needs    
properties 
 

 
 % Void rent loss            1.15% 

 
 1.49% 
 

 

 Percentage of gas compliance           100% 100% 

Repairs YHG will continue with the 
internal provision of day-to-day, 
voids and planned works within 
the Moorlands area through its 
DLO or other structure which 
employs local labour providing 
this is commercially viable. 
 
 
YHG will continue to explore 
opportunities with High Peak 
and any other local 
opportunities to develop JV’s, 
cost sharing vehicles or 
management agreements. 
These will only progress if the 
arrangement can add strength 
and value to the existing in-
house provision. 

 

 
 Average time to complete repair 

 

 
            8 days 

 
8.25 days  

 Average cost of repair 

 

            £95 
 

£99.85 (inc VAT) 
 

 

 Average time to complete void works 
 

            8 days 
 

11.68 days 
 

 Customer satisfaction with repairs service 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 Percentage of value of planned maintenance 
works undertaken by In-House Contractor 
function 

 
           100% 

 
 100% 

P
age 11



November 20th 2017  
 

 
Customer First  

 
In accordance with the Group’s 
Customer First methodology, 
develop and implement a YHG 
neighbourhood plan which will 
include a minimum financial 
investment of £73k per annum 
for at least 2 years ( 2017/19) 
 
2016/18 details and principles 
of the YHG neighbourhood plan 
were developed in consultation 
with legacy scrutiny task and 
finish group.     

 
 

 
 
Update on plan including: 
 

 Increase in customers who are economically 
active due to engagement with YHG activities 

 
 
 

 Increase in appeal of local neighbourhoods  
 
 

 Increase in local services within priority 
neighbourhood 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
41 - Customers into 
employment 
13 - Customers into 
volunteering 
77 - Customers into 
training 
 
Narrative information  
see legacy paper 
 
Narrative information  
see legacy paper 

Asset and 
Development  
 
 
 
 
 

YHG Growth Strategy 
 
The Capital Investment plan for 
2017/18 to be developed and 
approved by YHG by April 2017 
and annually thereafter by April 
each year 

Overall expenditure to date & programme progress 
reporting by committed and completed spend  

• Unit costs  
• Number of component replacements 

 
 
 

 
  
See Appendix 2 

 
 
See Appendix 2 
 

 
Digital engagement 

Customers will be able to access 
YHG service via a digital 
platform including web chat, 
email, text and via the website 
and social media 

Update on availability and usage of digital platform 

 Number of customers accessing services 
digitally 

 
N/A 

 
200 customers  

P
age 12



Appendix 2 Asset KPIs 

        

Area Capital 
Component  

Total 
Approved 
Budget  

Year End 
Projected 
Costs 

Properties on 
Programme  

Completed  
Properties E/O 
October 

Actual Spend 
to Date E/O 
October 

Committed  
Spend E/O 
October 

Average 
unit cost 

                  

MOORLANDS  Bathrooms £327,000 £369,242 88 28 £133,026 £184,068 £4,750.94 

MOORLANDS  Kitchens £663,000 £640,142 106 50 £285,816 £287,358 £5,716.31 

MOORLANDS  Heating £388,000 £222,114 68 30 £97,287 £151,801 £3,242.92 

MOORLANDS  Doors £55,800 £55,800 37 0 £50 £50   

MOORLANDS  Roofing £366,000 £422,467 62 16 £103,562 £120,105 £6,472.60 

MOORLANDS  Windows £69,600 £71,000 0 0 £914 £914   

                  

HIGH PEAK  Bathrooms £66,000 £55,671 18 15 £49,562 £51,130 £3,304.11 

HIGH PEAK  Heating £140,800 £162,840 55 50 £144,585 £154,552 £2,891.70 

HIGH PEAK  Kitchens £476,400 £349,611 83 59 £275,679 £299,743 £4,672.52 

HIGH PEAK  Doors £16,560 £16,560 21 0 £0 £0   

HIGH PEAK  Windows £156,000 £157,500 63 0 £0 £0   

                  

    £2,725,160 £2,522,947     £1,090,480 £1,249,721   

 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

Biddulph Citizens Advice Report April 2016 - March 2017 

Citizens Advice Biddulph provide the residents of Biddulph and the surrounding area a high quality 

advice service. We provide advice on several levels ranging from basic signposting and the 

provision of information, generalist advice through to specialist casework. We also deliver that 

advice in many ways including face to face, telephone advice and email advice. 

Telephone advice was provided via the Staffordshire Advice line until the end of February 2017, 

when funding was withdrawn by Staffordshire County Council.  In the 11 months of this year 

adviceline answered enquiries for 1013 clients from the Biddulph area. Since that date we have 

been trying to run a limited phone service for clients from Biddulph using volunteers. We already 

know that whilst some of the clients who contacted us by phone will now come into the bureau 

many cannot attend in person due to disability or caring responsibilities and those clients will no 

longer be able to access our advice.  

 

 

Achievement and Performance 

During the 2016/17 financial year the bureau dealt with 1,095 enquiries for 1,039 unique clients 

(clients are only counted once no matter how often they use the bureau system).  For clients this is 

an increase of 20% on the previous year.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key Statistics 

Clients 

Advice Issue Codes 

Client Contacts 

Enquiries 

1,039 

2,653 

1,095 

2,985 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 

Every client who comes into the local service office is recorded, with their permission, on our 

electronic case management system which is provided to us by Citizens Advice centrally. This 

system allows us to extract a lot of very useful information about our clients, their problems and 

what we do for them.  This information can be given to funders to justify what we have done but is 

also used to inform our work with partners to assist in Research and Campaign work at both 

national and local level.  

The chart below illustrates the problems that clients have brought to the local service office in the 

last 12 months   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The area of welfare benefits (51%) remains by far the highest category of problem in Biddulph. 

This has probably remained so this year due to the number of housing benefit (HB) applications 

we are assisting clients with since Staffordshire Moorlands required all claims to be made on line. 

In Biddulph both the library and the Town Hall give access to a computer but neither provide any 

assistance in completing the form. For many who are not IT literate this is not something they can 

complete on their  own, from Jan 16- March 16 we assisted 15 people to complete HB forms. This 

is normally not a one off process as clients do not have all the information or proof they need on 

the first visit and have to return with those documents to have them added to the application.  

Completing this form and asking clients questions actually allows us to find other areas that we 

may be able to assist the client 

Case Study 1  

Client is married living in a rented 3 bedroomed property. He came to us to see if there was any further 

income he was entitled to, he and his wife were already in receipt of standard rate AA and wondered if this 

could be increased as he had a heart by- pass and his breathing & mobility had become worse and his 

wife’s condition had become a lot worse. They were also in receipt of a state pension and a small 

occupational pension. 

Action taken 

Client initially had a Benefit check which flagged up that they were entitled to some CTR and HB. Client 

said they were up to date with any outstanding bills they had. 

Outcome 

 We completed 2 new forms to request a review of the rate for both of their Attendance allowances. 

This resulted in both being increased to the enhanced rate, an increase to their income of £56.40 a 

week  

Advice categories summary 

Page 16



 We did an online application for HB and Council Tax rebate (CTR) using the SMDC website and he 

was awarded CTR of £27.12pw and HB of £20.00pw, the client was extremely grateful for our help 

with this as he was unable to do this himself. 

 Client came back to us again a few weeks later as his Blue Badge was due for renewal and this 

also needed to be done on-line, we did the application and it went through ok. 

Client said he wouldn’t know where to come if we weren’t here and said he was very grateful for our time 

and help we gave him.  As a result of his visit to us his annual income rose by £5,383.00. 

 

 Debt (14%) and Employment (8%) are the next 2 highest areas of concern to our clients.  

In 2016/17 Biddulph local service office generated £5.16, in benefits to individuals through income 

maximisation, for every £1 invested by funders. The total gains for clients during the year were 

recorded at £250,000 which include welfare benefit entitlements as well as tribunal appeals. 

Benefit enquiries range from benefit entitlement checks, form filling, benefit suspensions and 

challenging benefit decisions. From SNSCAB a client receives both advice and support, and the 

tools to help themselves if possible. However advice like this is not quick. It takes time and many 

visits to sort out all the problems. Whilst statistics can illustrate numbers they cannot explain the 

depth and breadth of what we frequently do for clients.  

Case study 2 

Client was single living in an inherited property. He suffered from Anxiety, Epilepsy, Asthma and he had an 

ulcerated leg due to being a drug user for a prolonged period of time. 

He was in receipt of Employment Support Allowance (ESA) but due to not feeling well enough to attend an 

assessment he lost this benefit. In the meantime his GP and nurse told him to come and see us with regard 

to claiming PIP. Client said he didn’t have any outstanding debts but he had had debt advice from Citizens 

Advice in the past. 

Action taken 

 We helped him to complete a Mandatory Reconsideration form to request reinstatement of his ESA  

 We assisted him to complete a Personal Independence Payment.   Due to the nature of his ailments 

it took several attempts for the client to engage with us and for these to be completed 

 We also gave the client a food voucher on a two occasions whilst waiting for the benefit decisions. 

Outcome 

We heard from the DWP that the client was successful in this application for PIP and was awarded 

Standard Rate Daily Living and Mobility this making an award of £55.10pw for the Daily living and 

£21.80pw for the Mobility component. He was also successful in getting his ESA re-instated, this meant he 

also received a back payment of £2,046.80  

The total annual increase in his income due to our intervention was £6,046 

When clients present with debt problems volunteer advisers initially assist clients to deal with 

urgent priority debts in order to stabilise the situation then refer to specialist debt workers funded 

by the Money Advice Service (MASDAP) if casework is required. MASDAP fund 1 full time 

equivalent worker throughout the SMDC area and Cheadle Citizens Advice provide this service to 

Biddulph clients within the Biddulph local service office. They therefore record all Biddulph clients 

indebtedness in their statistics and it is this way of dealing with debt that lowers the Biddulph 

statistics for debt.  

 

Page 17



 

Added value 

As well as offering generalist advice to all clients and specialist advice to money advice and 

housing clients we are also able to assist clients to access other funds which may improve their 

situation. Being part of a national network like Citizens Advice does ensure we are able to access 

these alternative funds.  We assist clients to access the Big Difference Scheme which is run by 

Severn Trent Water to assist clients reduce their water bill. Last year we assisted 17 people with 

applications to the fund and saved them a total of £4,320.  

We get money for the Big Energy Savings week each year to give people energy advice and 

particularly information and support to reduce their energy costs. We had a stall within one of the 

supermarkets within the town to access people  

Clients 

Clearly Biddulph whilst one of the smaller local service office is very highly prized by the local 

community and needed by that community.  This can be seen by the breadth of ages that use the 

bureau – see chart below. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Perhaps not suprisinly more than 50% of clients who attend the local service office report a 

disability. The range of disabilities reported is worth noting as it illustrates the complexity of the 

needs our clients have.  

 

Age range of clients 

Page 18



390 clients from the Moorlands chose to access the Citizens Advice through the Hanley or 

Newcastle local service office this may be because transport is easier for them to access these 

local service office or because they work in the area. 

Volunteers 

We could not offer the services we do without the help and support given by the volunteers who 

assist us in giving advice or work behind the scenes within the local service office. Our volunteers 

contributed approximately 3,948 hours of work for the Biddulph service office during the year. The 

estimated value of this help is £80,348 in respect of last year (2016/2017).  

Local Profile 

We continue to write a bi-monthly advice column in the Biddulph times and have written advice on 

many subjects including Holiday Advice and claiming compensation, Redundancy and Debt and 

Consumer advice all issues we frequently have into in the local service office. An example of a 

column printed this year is below.  

For the Biddulph Times: Biddulph Citizens Advice Corner 

Q. I bought a microwave two months ago but it’s broken already and won’t switch on. I went back to the 

retailer and they said they could have a go at repairing it, but I may have to pay a fee. Should I have to 

pay to get it fixed?  

If your microwave is broken and it’s not your fault you shouldn’t have to pay the retailer to repair it.  

Because you bought your microwave less than six months ago - you have the right to return it and get a 

free repair, a replacement or a refund. This applies whether you bought the item online or from a shop.  

Check your retailer’s returns policy to see how you should return it - some will collect it for free, while 

others ask you to return it through a delivery service or to a store. You’ll need to show proof of purchase, 

such as a receipt or email confirmation, and explain the problem.  

They should then offer to either replace or repair your microwave free of charge, if it’s repairable. If both 

options are possible, the retailer should consider which will be the quickest and most convenient for you 

when making a decision.  

If your microwave is sent away for repair but still doesn’t work, you will be entitled to a full refund instead. 

You can also ask for a refund if your microwave is replaced with a different model. 

For more information use Citizens Advice’s online  faulty goods tool or contact the Citizens Advice 

consumer service on 03454 04 05 06.  

 

Changes in coming year 

During this year Biddulph Town Council gave us an additional amount of £3,000 due to the closure 

of a local support agency. This will cease during 2017-18. The ending of the Staffordshire County 

Council funding means a reduction of £6,500 a year in funding. The local service office is secure 

but this does mean that from the start of April 2017 the local service office has reduced its opening 

hours by not opening for 2 hours on a Tuesday afternoon. We do not believe this is actually going 

to lead to a decrease in clients as it appears that the 3 days a week we are open are gradually 

becoming busier. 

 

Page 19

https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/consumer/somethings-gone-wrong-with-a-purchase/return-faulty-goods/
https://www.citizensadvice.org.uk/consumer/somethings-gone-wrong-with-a-purchase/return-faulty-goods/


This page is intentionally left blank



The difference we 

make to Cheadle

Our impact in 2016/17

P
age 21



We are Cheadle Citizens Advice. 

Last year more than a thousand people 

come to us for help solving their 

problems. 

This means we’re an important part of 

the community, with a credible 

understanding of local needs. 

We use this to tailor our services and 

help improve local policies and practices. 

[Insert story about 

Alex here]

373,000
saved by government and 

public services last year 

- £3.55 for every £1 invested in 

our service 

P
age 22



This is Nina

Nina is an example of one of the 

people we helped. 

Last year, we saw over a 1000 

people about 7,390 issues. 

Nina’s story shows how we help 

people solve their problems, and why 

this is important. 

P
age 23



Sam helped Nina write a letter to her 

landlord and set up a payment plan. This 

stopped her landlord trying to evict her. 

Together, they worked out a budget to 

help Nina with other debts and maximise

her income. 

Sam found out Nina was on a flexible 

hours contract, so he helped her better 

understand her rights at work. 

P
age 24



Our impact

7 in 10 people
felt less stressed, 

depressed or anxious

Nearly 1 in 2 
had more money or 

control of their finances 

2 in 5 
had a more secure 

housing situation  

Nearly 1 in 2 
felt their physical health had 

improved 

3 in 10 
found it easier to do their 

job or find a job 

Nearly 1 in 2 
felt they had better relationships 

with others 

3 in 5 
found it easier to manage 

day-to-day 

Outcomes and impact research, 2017

P
age 25



Why fixing problems matters

If left unsolved, problems don’t just 

affect the individual -

they affect this community. 

Solving them creates considerable 

value to society.

● 9 in 10 people we help say that 

their problem negatively affected their 

life

● 2 in 3 say they had difficulty knowing 

who to contact or how systems work 

before advice

● 1 in 3 come to us when they needed 

to take action urgently

Outcomes and impact research, 

2017

P
age 26



Our value to society 

£3.55

in savings to 

government and 

public services 

(fiscal benefits)

Total: £373,000

£16.57

in wider economic 

and social benefits 

(public value)

Total: £1,742,400

£23.87

in financial value to 

the people we help 

(specific outcomes to 

individuals)

Total: £2,509,000

For every £1 invested in our service in 2016/17, we generated: 

P
age 27



How we calculate our financial value

It’s impossible to put a financial 

value on everything we do -

but where we can, we have. 

We’ve used a Treasury-approved 

model to do this. 

● Keeping people in employment or 

helping them back to work

● Preventing housing evictions and 

statutory homelessness

● Reducing demand for mental health and 

GP services

● Improving mental wellbeing and positive 

functioning 

● Improved family relationships

From our robust management information, we’ve 

also separately considered the financial benefits 

to the people we help. 

P
age 28



Our value to this community 

This is only one fraction of our true value. 

We also: 

● help clients negotiate local 

processes, such as welfare reform 

changes

● help local authority rent and council 

tax arrears to be rescheduled, and 

reduce the associated 

administrative costs

[Insert story about 

Alex here][Insert story about 

Alex here]

67,140
saved by local government, 

through reducing homelessness

Our savings to the public purse include: 

Maximising the income for those we help prevents 

more costly intervention. 

This helps reduce financial difficulty, 

promotes inclusion and benefits the economy. 

P
age 29



This is Sam
The wider value of volunteering

People like Sam give their time, skills and 

experience to enable us to reach as many 

people as we do. 

There are also has considerable benefits for 

them too, such as improved employability. 

This year our trained volunteers gave up 

£146,600 worth of volunteering hours to help 

deliver our services. 

P
age 30



Slide 10

2 The wider value of volunteering?
Sian Whyte, 07/09/17

P
age 31



The Future for Citizens Advice Cheadle

Against a backdrop of increasing 

financial pressure we aim to secure 

the future of a Citizens advice 

service in Cheadle whilst developing 

and modernising our service in order 

to help more people. 

● More access to our services by 

increasing our telephone service and 

improving our digital offer.

● Face to face services will be protected 

for the most vulnerable in our 

community.

● Invest in the training and development 

of our people.

● Continue to campaign locally on the 

issues that affect people’s lives and 

champion equality in all that we do.

● Implement plans to secure the future of 

Citizens Advice Cheadle.

P
age 32



Presented by: Julie Billingham, Chief Officer

Date: November 2017

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Leek Citizens Advice – Annual Update for the Scrutiny Panel – 20th November 2017 at 

2:00 pm 

Summary 

 Citizens Advice Leek is open 9 Hours per Week for new Enquiries  

 This service has an average attendance of 30 Clients 

 We have seen 1150 through this method alone in the last 12 Months 

 We take Direct Referrals from Children and Adult Safeguarding, Family 

Intervention Project, Building Resilient Families and Communities (BRFC) and 

other Statutory and Non-Statutory Bodies. We see between 300 and 350 

Clients through this method 

 We have provided support to approximately 150 Client’s referred or 

signposted by the SMDC iCAN project. We have a dedicated Volunteer who 

supports a client in making an Online Housing Benefit and/or Council Tax 

Reduction Claim, DHP or progress a Change in Circumstance 

 The migration of Clients from claiming ‘Legacy Benefits’ to Universal Credit is 

gathering pace in the Moorlands. Some of the issues that have arisen have 

been well documented, such as the 6 Week wait for payment and the 

previous cost of call charges, however the picture becomes even more 

murky when an Employer dismisses an Employee without notice and pay. This 

can often result in a 10 Week wait for funds unless conciliation is successful 

 The Legal Aid Cuts have also had a devastating impact on access to justice. 

This has been most widely experienced in Family Law.  

 It is becoming increasingly evident that many consumers have been using 

Consumer Credit and other sources of Borrowed Capital to supplement 

uncertain incomes during the economic Recovery.  Many experts believe 

that this is going to result in a ‘Credit Bubble’ that may burst if there are major 

variations in Interest Rates and increasing commercial uncertainty during the 

Brexit process. 

 Leek and the Moorlands has a large community of EU Nationals. We are 

already experiencing issues with passport, nationality and even Residency 

Permit applications following the Referendum. The outcome of the 

negotiation is uncertain. This could lead to large populations of the Moorlands 

becoming subject to the Immigration Rules. 

 Clients with long term sickness and disabilities continue to be subject to the 

continual cycle of assessment and reassessment. This creates unpredictable 

assessment outcomes. This has led to multiple Appeal Representations as the 

Mandatory Reconsideration procedure is rarely successful. 

 We offer a unique opportunity for many to develop new skills by Volunteering. 

This provides an added economic benefit to the Community 

 We have generated £2,500,000 worth of Welfare Benefits from Central 

Government over the course of the past 12 Months. In addition, we have 

helped Client’s manage ~£5,000,000 worth of debt. This process has helped 

release at least ~£3,500,000 into the local economy. 

 

 

Page 35



LEEK CITIZENS OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES 

Leek Citizens Advice provides free, independent, confidential and impartial advice 

to everyone. The Organisation promotes equality and diversity and challenges 

discrimination. The service aims to provide the advice people need for the problems 

they face and to improve the policies and practices that affect people’s lives. 

 

Access to advice services, equality in society and the provision of services in 

locations where vulnerable or hard to reach groups can make best use of them are 

important concerns for the charity. The charity provides advice on several levels 

ranging from basic signposting and the provision of information, generalist advice, 

specialist casework and representation at tribunal or in a County Court setting. 

 

In addition to the continuing provision of high quality advisory services to the local 

community, the primary objectives for the year were to extend the means of service 

provision including closer liaison and joint working with other local bureaux.  

 

To obtain the necessary funding to provide additional services, applications were 

made on a local and national basis to providers of community finances.  

 

In addition to Generalist advice the following specialist services were also provided: 

 

1. Specialist Welfare Benefits Advice  

2. Specialist Debt Advice 

3. Specialist Employment Advice 

4. Specialist Homelessness and Housing Advice 

 

Advice services were provided through face to face appointments, telephone and 

home visits. The service is accessible 5 days per Week although beneficiaries will be 

triaged appropriately in order to protect the integrity of the current 9 Hours per 

Week Gateway provision. In an ideal situation, we would provide a full service 

throughout the Week. However, funding is extremely tight in the current socio-

economic climate. 

 

 

 

 

VOLUNTEERS 

 

The charity receives help and support in the form of voluntary assistance in advising 

the public and administering the charity. 

 

Our volunteers contributed approximately 10348 hours of work for the bureau during 

the year. The estimated value of this help is £202,155.00 in respect of the current year 

(2016/17). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



ACHIEVEMENT AND PERFORMANCE 

Charitable activities 

 

Leek Citizens Advice Bureau offers the residents of the district and its surrounding 

areas a high quality core generalist advice service as well as a well-balanced 

specialist advice service provided through its project funding. 

 

The areas of Welfare Benefits and Debt remain the highest areas of concern and 

have the largest effect on our clients lives.  Whilst having a professional, well trained 

team of volunteers and paid staff to cope with this demand at times the demand 

has exceeded the resources available.  During 2016/2017 the bureau dealt with 1550 

clients on 7856 social policy issues. There were 4530 client contacts.  It is anticipated 

that the demand will continue to grow into the following year due to the changes 

which were introduced this financial year and those yet to come into force. The roll 

out of Universal Credit is going to provide a robust challenge to Statutory, Non-

Statutory and Charitable Services alike. 

 

The level of client’s indebtedness was recorded at £5,075.256.99. This is an increase 

from the previous year mainly due to some temporary MAS funding which has 

meant that we have been able to expand General Money Advice Work and 

Financial Capability. We have continued to process Debt Relief Orders and 

Bankruptcy Petitions, but non-priority debt clients have been referred to the partner 

organisation, StepChange and go onto debt management plans.  

 

The total gains for clients during the year were recorded at £3,519.550.29 which 

includes welfare benefit entitlements as well as tribunal appeals and debt write-offs 

through formal Insolvency Options.   

 

ADVICE TRENDS – 2016 – 2017  

County Court Judgments, Statute Barred Debts and Administration Orders 

 We have seen the impact of an increased use of the County Court Judgment 

to enforce debts over the past 12 Months. Prior to the Financial Crisis of 2008-

2010, there was an increased use of low cost credit. In many instances, such 

lending was irresponsible. Many Creditors failed to assess affordability and the 

likelihood of repayment. The Financial Crisis had a major impact on Debtors 

ability to repay these loans. Job losses, pay restraint, welfare benefit cuts and 

increases in the costs of services, such as child minding, created a toxic mix that 

led to Defaults. These Debts were effectively shelved for a number of Years. 

However, these debts now appear to have been sold on to third-party specialist 

debt collection companies who are now enforcing them through the County 

Court process. In many instances, these debts are either Statute Barred, close to 

being Statute Barred or enforceable on a technical point of law. There is a strong 

suspicion amongst Money Advice professionals that accounts are being 

electronically credited with payments or rebates in order to make them appear 

enforceable to a District Judge. Such Debtors need specialist advice on setting 

aside and challenging Default Judgments. We have a Specialist Debt Team who 

are equipped to deal with such issues. Thirty clients have benefitted from 

litigation support in this respect. 

Page 37



  County Court Judgments can be enforced in a number of ways. These 

include the use of Enforcement Agents, Attachment of Earnings, Third Party Debt 

Orders and Charging Orders. We have seen a sharp increase in the use of 

Enforcement Agents and Charging Orders. This presents a unique challenge to 

Money Advice Professionals. There is very limited scope for challenging a 

Charging Order. However, the other forms of enforcement action can be 

routinely set aside and varied to enable Clients to make affordable offers of 

repayment. A County Court Judgment can also be an opportunity for Money 

Advisers. Clients with debts of less than £5,000 who have at least two Creditors, 

one of which is a Judgment Creditor, can apply for an Administration Order (AO) 

or a Composition Administration Order (CAO). In an Administration Order the 

debts are repaid in full over three years. In a Composition Administration Order 

the debt is settled for less than its legal value over three years but recorded as 

partially settled on a Credit Reference File. These remedy is available to both 

homeowners and tenants living in rented accommodation. This option gives 

eligible Clients the option to repay debts to the satisfaction of the Court at an 

affordable rate over three years. This remedy is slightly archaic but it is now being 

‘dusted off’ by Money Advice professionals to use as a tool to meet the 

challenges of an increased use of County Court Judgments. 912,389 judgments 

were registered against consumers in England and Wales, which is an 

increase of 24% on the 734,205 registered in 2015. This data is provided by 

the Registry Trust, which operates the Register of Judgments, Orders and 

Fines for England and Wales on behalf of the Ministry of Justice. 

 Two of our Staff Members have completed the Certificate in Money Advice 

Practice at Staffordshire University during 2017. The Course has been developed 

by the Institute of Money Advisers (IMA) to provide Money Advisers with the skills 

and knowledge required to meet the challenges and standards required by the 

profession. One of our Advisers is due to complete the Certificate of Proficiency 

in Insolvency (CPI) in December 2017. This is accredited by the Insolvency 

Practitioners Association (IPA) and is a precursor to sitting the Joint Insolvency 

Examination (JIE). Two members of our Money Advice Team has also completed 

the entire Wiseradviser Money Advice Programme run by the Money Advice Trust 

and the Giving Good Debt Advice run collaboratively between Citizens Advice, 

the Money Advice Trust and the Institute of Money Advisers.  We are in the 

process of training another Volunteer to become a Money Adviser and join our 

Money Advice Team. This Volunteer was looking to retrain after losing his Job in 

Engineering. He is currently focusing on Income Maximisation and Welfare Rights 

which is an essential part of the Money Advice process. It will take at least two 

years to train him to a suitable standard to give general Money Advice. This 

volunteer is currently helping Clients to complete Housing Benefit and Council 

Tax Reduction Forms online. He is currently completing between 1 and 3 Housing 

Benefit and Council Tax Reduction related forms.  

The Welfare Rights Team – Helping Vulnerable Clients to Manage Complicated 

Claiming Processes 

Page 38

https://www.trustonline.org.uk/


 The DWP tend to re-assess a Claimant’s entitlement to Benefit on a Postcode 

by Postcode basis. This is an opinion that is supported by local advice trends. The 

aim seems to be to target a large amount of people in a small geographical 

area.  This procedure puts an overwhelming demand on advice services. We 

have a team of four Welfare Rights Advisers. Two Advisers specialise in 

completing ESA, PIP, DLA and AA Forms. We have one Adviser who specialises in 

Appeal Work and a Supervisor who completes complex Appeal Work including 

Upper Tribunal Appeals and offers guidance and opinions to the Team. The 

demand for services in this area never reduces. We have a very high success 

rate in maximising Client income by assisting with compliance and challenging 

incorrect decisions. We have a good relationship with the Tribunal Centre at 

Bennett House because of our good work in Appeal presentation, preparation 

and evidence gathering. The First Tier Tribunal focuses on the facts of the case. 

The Appellant has a greater chance of success if the case is presented in a clear 

and concise manner and it is supported by ‘Good’ Medical Evidence. GP’s are 

rarely very good at supporting Claimant’s and Appellant’s appropriately. This is 

because they simply do not have the time to sit down and prepare an ‘on point’ 

submission. Some GP’s believe that the system is not fit for purpose because it 

challenges their opinions. Some GP’s are not knowledgeable about the finer 

points of the DWP Tests. The DWP tests are a functional assessment as opposed to 

a medical assessment. These tests can generate some very spurious decisions 

and have recently included a decision that found a Client who was paralysed 

from the waist down able to walk distances of greater than 50 Metres. This may 

have been correct in law. However, there were two other descriptors that should 

have been applied. This case is still ongoing. A Consultant has been approached 

for appropriate evidence. 

Working with Agencies – A Good Example of Partnership Working 

 As mentioned in the precis, we routinely work very closely with a wide range 

of Statutory, Non-Statutory and Voluntary Agencies. This provides a significant 

benefit to the performance of these services for no financial consideration. Our 

continued existence depends on the charity of others. Our donation boxes are 

not going to provide sufficient resources to fund the services. Our services are 

specialised and valued. Retention of knowledgeable and experienced staff is 

another major challenge to sustainability. Our contribution to the economy of 

the Staffordshire Moorlands is significant and we appreciate the contribution 

made by the Local Authority. We think our service also supports provides a 

significant benefit to Local Services. 

 An example of our work with SSOTP is cited below. We were approached by 

SSOTP for advice and assistance in relation to a Housebound Client in her 80’s 

who was being threatened with disconnection by Npower for unpaid electricity 

to the value of ~£10,000. Investigation revealed that the Client’s only source of 

income was a National Insurance Retirement Pension of ~£83,.10. Npower were 

contacted to put a hold on the account in the interim. Applications for Pension 

Credit Guarantee, Attendance Allowance and Council Tax Reduction were 

made. These were successful and the Client’s income was maximised by £180.00 

per Week. An application was made to Npower Energy Fund for a Contribution 

Page 39



to the arrears. This was successful and an award of £9,000 was granted. The 

balance is being recovered by Fuel Direct, a form of Attachment of Benefit, at 

£3.70/week. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



 
Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - Work Programme 2017/18 

 

Date Items for Agenda 

  

3 July 2017 Grant Funding – Esther Jones 
Team Leader, Staffordshire Moorlands and ESF Voluntary Sector Advisor 

 Biddulph Public Spaces Protection Order 

  

11 September 2017 Safeguarding Annual Report 

 Policy on enforcement of environmental crimes 

  

20 November 2017 Your Housing Group 

 CAB Annual Update – Biddulph & Cheadle confirmed 

  

29 January 2018 Police Force Operational Annual Update – Inspector Mark Thorley 

  

19 March 2018  

 

Key Organisations to Invite/ Schedule Annually 

Police and Crime Commissioner & Operational Annual Update 

Fire Service Annual Update 

Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update 

 

Items for Consideration 

 Joint governance of the Police and the Fire and Rescue services in Staffordshire 

 High Schools in the Moorlands (Possible closure of Room 21 at Leek High School, funding,  redundancy of teachers, 
impact and mental health support) 

 
 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	6 Your Housing Group - 6 Monthly Update & Review.
	6.1. Appendix 1 Legacy Agreement KPI 20th November 2017
	6.2. 2017.11.09 Appendix 2 Asset KPIs

	7 Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update.
	7. Cheadle CAB Update
	7. Leek Citizens Advice

	8 Work Programme

